IN THE SUPREME COURT OF FLORIDA

CASE NO. SC03-1201

WILLIAM DUANE ELLEDGE,

Appellant,

v.

STATE OF FLORIDA,

Appellee.

ON APPEAL FROM THE CIRCUIT COURT
OF THE SEVENTEENTH JUDICIAL CIRCUIT,
IN AND FOR BROWARD COUNTY, STATE OF FLORIDA

INITIAL BRIEF OF APPELLANT

HILLIARD E. MOLDOF Florida Bar Number 215678 1311 SE Second Avenue Fort Lauderdale, FL 33316 (954) 462-1005

COUNSEL FOR APPELLANT

PRELIMINARY STATEMENT

This appeal involves a Rule 3.850 motion on which an evidentiary hearing was granted on some issues, and summarily denied on others. References in the brief shall be as follows:

(R. ____) -- Record on Direct appeal;

(PC-R. ____) -- Record in this instant appeal.

STATEMENT OF THE CASE AND OF THE FACTS

Introduction

Duane Elledge has been on Florida's death row for nearly 30 years awaiting execution after pleading guilty in 1975. He has undergone four resentencing proceedings, three of which were reversed because of prosecutorial overreaching, the State's failure to disclose discovery material and judicial error. This fourth time is no exception.

At the evidentiary hearing on Mr. Elledge's claims, the State withheld exculpatory evidence under the guise of "exempt materials," yet improperly used the information to impeach the defense expert witness at the evidentiary hearing. The State knowingly allowed misleading and false testimony to be presented without correction. This unethical behavior should not be condoned or overlooked.

* * * *

Mr. Elledge pled guilty to first-degree murder and rape on

March 17, 1975. He was sentenced to death on March 27, 1975 by Circuit Court Judge Daniel Futch. State Attorney Michael Satz was the prosecutor. On direct appeal, the Florida Supreme Court vacated the death sentence because it found that testimony about Mr. Elledge's confession to a murder for which

he had not been convicted was a non-statutory aggravating factor and was not harmless error to admit it into evidence.

Elledge v. State, 346 So. 2d 998 (Fla. 1977).

At his second resentencing prosecuted by Michael Satz, Mr.

Elledge was again resentenced to death by Judge Futch and the Florida Supreme Court affirmed. Elledge v. State, 408 So. 2d 1021 (Fla. 1982). The Eleventh Circuit Court of Appeals vacated the death sentence and remanded for resentencing. The Eleventh Circuit held that the sentencing judge's failure to either consider less restrictive alternatives or to give a specific cautionary instruction before it ordered Mr. Elledge shackled was reversible error and entitled Mr. Elledge to a new hearing. Elledge v. Dugger, 823 F.2d 1439 (11th Cir.)., modified 833 F.2d 250 (1987).

At the third resentencing prosecuted by Michael Satz, Mr. Elledge was sentenced to death again by Judge Daniel Futch. The Florida Supreme Court again reversed and remanded for new sentencing. The Court held that the failure of the trial court to conduct a <u>Richardson</u> hearing when defense counsel objected to the state's failure to comply with the discovery rules was reversible error; the court's failure to find Mr. Elledge's abused childhood as a nonstatutory mitigating factor

was error; and the court's admission of numerous photos of the victim was error. <u>Elledge v. State</u>, 613 So. 2d 434 (Fla. 1993).

On November 1, 1993, Mr. Elledge's fourth resentencing began

in Fort Lauderdale before the Honorable Circuit Court Judge Charles M. Greene. State Attorney Michael Satz was again the prosecutor. On November 19, 1993, the jury returned a verdict of 9-3 in favor of death.

On February 4, 1994, Mr. Elledge was sentenced to death a fourth time. The Florida Supreme Court affirmed the conviction and sentence. Elledge v. State, 706 So. 2d 1340 (Fla. 1997); rehearing denied (1998). The United States Supreme Court denied certiorari, Elledge v. Florida, 119 S. Ct. 366 (1998). In its denial of certiorari, Justice Breyer, in a dissent, said he would have granted the petition for certiorari because Mr. Elledge:

argues forcefully that his execution would be especially "cruel." Not only has he, in prison, faced the threat of death for nearly a generation, but he has experienced that delay because of the **State's own faulty procedures** and not because of frivolous appeals on his own part. His three successful appeals account for 18 of the 23 years of delay. A fourth appeal accounts for the

remaining

5 years -- which appeal, though ultimately unsuccessful, left the Florida Supreme Court divided 4-2, 706 So. 2d 1340

(1997).

Id. (emphasis added).

Based on his fourth resentencing, on May 29, 2001, Mr. Elledge filed a Second Amended Motion to Vacate Judgment and Conviction (PC-R. at 1571-1680). A hearing pursuant to Huff v. State, 622 So. 2d 982 (Fla. 1993) was held on September 21, 2001. An evidentiary hearing was granted partially on the claims of ineffective assistance of counsel, conflict of interest and Ake v. Oklahoma, 470 U.S. 68 (1985). The remainder of the issues were summarily denied (PC-R. at 1746-1762).

An evidentiary hearing was held on July 1-3, 2002 (PC-R. at 1-646). The order denying relief was filed on April 3, 2003 (PC-R. at 1939-1952). An amended order was filed on April 17, 2003, and the only change from the first order to the amended order was the line that read, "The Defendant shall have thirty (30) days from the date of this Order to appeal." (PC-R. at 1953-1974).

Mr. Elledge filed a Motion for Rehearing (PC-R. at 1967-1976) which was denied on May 22, 2003 (PC-R. at 2012-2013).

A notice of appeal was filed on June 20, 2003 (PC-R. at 2025). This appeal follows and is timely.

SUMMARY OF ARGUMENTS

1. Mr. Elledge was deprived of his rights to due process

when the State failed to disclose exculpatory evidence in its possession. Confidence in the reliability of the outcome of the proceedings is undermined by the non-disclosure. Further, the State knowingly presented false or misleading evidence to obtain a conviction and sentence. Mr. Elledge's sentence of death must be vacated and a resentencing ordered.

2. Mr. Elledge was deprived of the effective assistance

of counsel at his resentencing.

3. Mr. Elledge suffered from a conflict of interest that

violated his rights. This was ineffective assistance of counsel.

4. Excessive security measures and his shackling deprived

him of his due process rights.

- 5. Thirty years on death row is cruel and unusual punishment.
- 6. Mr. Elledge's lengthy confinement violations international law.

- 7.
- 8. Mr. Elledge is insane to be executed.
- 9. Mr. Elledge's failure to interview jurors violates his

rights and his access to the courts.

- 10. Mr. Elledge is innocent of the death penalty.
- 11. Florida's death penalty statute is unconstitutional.
- 12. Florida's death penalty is cruel and unusual punishment.
 - 13. The cumulative errors in Mr. Elledge's resentencing and

post-conviction hearing entitle him to a new resentencing.

ARGUMENT I

THE HEARING COURT ERRED IN DENYING MR. ELLEDGE'S CLAIM THAT HE WAS DEPRIVED OF HIS DUE PROCESS RIGHTS WHEN THE STATE WITHHELD EVIDENCE THAT WAS MATERIAL AND EXCULPATORY AND/OR PRESENTED FALSE OR MISLEADING EVIDENCE.

I. INTRODUCTION.

At Mr. Elledge's resentencing in 1993, the State argued that the mental health experts used by the defense were inconsistent with each other and "differ[ed] in their own analysis" (R. 2806). The State also argued that the defense experts were incredible because they differed with each other and, canceled each other out.

At the evidentiary hearing conducted in July, 2002, Mr. Elledge presented 1) evidence of trial counsel's ineffectiveness and failure to present evidence of a competent and highly qualified mental health expert; and 2) evidence that a conflict of interest developed between trial counsel and Mr. Elledge that left Mr. Elledge without an attorney to represent him.

At the evidentiary hearing, however, there were new discoveries and new disclosures. As a result, the evidence that was presented did not directly correspond to the Second Amended Rule 3.850 motion. Upon being appraised of these new discoveries, Mr. Elledge orally moved to amend the Rule 3.850

motion.

This is not an unusual development in Rule 3.850 proceedings. In Jones v. State, 709 So.2d 512, 518 (Fla. 1998), evidence of a Brady violation was discovered on the eve of an evidentiary hearing. There, the defendant was permitted to present the evidence and allowed to subsequently orally amend his successor Rule 3.850 motion to include a previously unpled <u>Brady</u> violation. <u>Cf. Way v. State</u>, 760 So.2d 903, 916 (Fla. 2000)(no error where testimony was excluded by the judge at the evidentiary hearing as outside the scope of the 3.850 motion because "Way never attempted to amend his postconviction motion," not even during the appeal). Mr. Elledge orally sought to amend his Rule 3.850 motion to conform with the evidence at the hearing (PC-R. at 620). trial court, by his actions, allowed the hearing to proceed based on the Brady claim alleged by the defense. Mr. Elledge also moved to amend the 3.850 motion in his written closing statements.

The amended claim included 1) the State violated due process by not disclosing at resentencing and in the post-conviction process evidence that Dr. Norman had conducted specific tests on Mr. Elledge - tests that a defense expert had been requesting for years. This information should have

been made available to the defense, but was withheld by the State as "exempt materials," yet used against the defense expert at the evidentiary hearing; 2) the State knowingly allowed misleading or false testimony to be presented without correction when trial counsel testified that Dorothy Lewis, a defense expert, wanted to know if various tests had been conducted on Mr. Elledge. The State knew at all times that those tests had been conducted on Mr. Elledge, but withheld that information until cross examination of Dr. Lewis; and 3) and the State improperly withheld materials that it considered "exempt," when those materials in fact were the result of improper contact between the State and a confidential defense expert. Cf. Brady v. Maryland, 373 U.S. 83 (1963).

II. THE STATE WITHHELD EXCULPATORY INFORMATION AND FAILED TO CORRECT FALSE OR MISLEADING TESTIMONY IN VIOLATION OF THE EIGHTH AND FOURTEENTH AMENDMENTS.

A. The Facts

Dr. Dorothy Lewis, a psychiatrist and board certified by the

American Board of Psychiatry and Neurology in Psychiatry (PC-R. at 262), first evaluated Mr. Elledge in 1983. At that time, she reviewed his California Department of Youth Authority records, his Colorado State Hospital records, and statements he made to the Florida Parole Commission. She

spoke with his mother on the telephone and in person with his sister and brother. From these interviews, she learned that Mr. Elledge was born a "blue baby," with lack of oxygen to the brain and that he had had a traumatic delivery (PC-R. at 279-281).

She learned that his mother had had a drinking problem and had been drinking during her pregnancy with Mr. Elledge. She learned that Mrs. Elledge was hospitalized for psychiatric problems; that she went through stages of depression where she was listless and did not get out of bed. There were other times when she flew into rages, battered her children and got into violent fights with her husband and assaulted him with knives. Dr. Lewis described Mrs. Elledge as suffering an episodic mood disorder. Mrs. Elledge was extremely suspicious – she felt people were looking through windows and following her. Dr. Lewis described these as "psychotic symptoms." Dr. Lewis said this information was important because some of these disorders are hereditary and run in families.

Dr. Lewis also learned that Mr. Elledge had epilepsy.

(PC-R. at 282). He had severe beatings as a child, and he had episodes where he could not remember what he had done. Dr. Lewis learned that Mr. Elledge had numerous head injuries, including having his head bashed into a concrete wall in a

cellar when he was 5 years old. He sustained a blow to his head at age 9, and was hit over the head with a croquet mallet by his brother. His nose was broken several times, and he was hit in the head with a two by four (PC-R. at 280-285). He was hit in the right frontal area with a rifle butt. "He has had many different head injuries and trauma to the central nervous system at birth." (PC-R. at 286).

Dr. Lewis said these assaults on Mr. Elledge's brain caused Mr. Elledge to be impulsive and overwhelmed by feelings of rage or other feelings of passion.

Mr. Elledge also was evaluated by Dr. Jonathan Pincus in 1983. Dr. Pincus identified signs of central nervous system dysfunction; paranoia; the possibility of a seizure disorder and episodes of blanking out (PC-R. at 289-290).

Based on these factors, and her opinion that Mr. Elledge was paranoid, had brain damage and a history of hideous abuse (PC-R. at 299-300), Dr. Lewis said she would have wanted additional tests to be conducted on Mr. Elledge.

Well, I would have wanted - I know that he has since had a - a EEG. Excuse me. But because of his history of some of the psychomotor symptoms that I talked about, and the lapses where he doesn't remember things, and Dr. Pincus's recommendation, I would have wanted him to have sleep-deprived EEG because what you're more likely to pick up abnormalities on the EEG if an individual is sleeping, strangely enough. So you keep the person up all night.

I would have wanted him to have an EEG with what is photic stimulation where lights are flickered because people who are susceptible to this, have -- that that is more likely to elicit the abnormal electrical activity or hyperventilation. Because when you breathe a lot, you are then more likely to have abnormal brain activity. Also, if I recall -- again, correct me if I'm wrong -- there was some abnormality noted and then discounted on even the regular EEG that he had.

So that I would have wanted to pursue that further, particularly with a neurologist. I would also have liked -- well, I never saw the raw data, but I would have like to have had more thorough neuropsychologicals done because he has -- you know, he has signs of some frontal-lobe dysfunction.

And then, ideally, in the ideal world, it would have been nice to have him have a PET scan because a PET scan wold probably have been the best way of documenting frontal lobe dysfunction. So, again, in an ideal world, that's the kind of workup that he — I would have wanted, and, indeed, we have occasionally been able to get that on, you know, on an individual with similar behavior problems.

(PC-R. at. 304-305).

Dr. Lewis had been requesting that these tests be conducted on Mr. Elledge for many years, in fact, since she first evaluated him in 1983.

I discussed a need for specialized EEGs throughout the times that I have been involved in the case, and I asked for EEGs with photic stimulation, and hyperventilation, and nasopharyngeal leads...And so that those really should have been done... And, therefore, with individuals who have seizures, not only do you go by the clinical evidence, but you also would want to do maybe three EEGS. It has been shown if you do more than one with

someone where there are clinical signs that there is a seizure disorder, you should do several.

(PC-R. at 539-540).

During the evidentiary hearing in July, 2002, it was learned for the first time that Mr. Elledge, in fact, had undergone some of these tests, but that information was withheld from the defense by the State Attorney. It was revealed at the evidentiary hearing that the State Attorney had ex parte communication with defense expert Dr. Norman, to which the defense was not a party. The State Attorney received a three-page faxed document from Dr. Norman that was not turned over to the defense, despite Dr. Norman's role as a confidential defense expert (PC-R. at 104). This ex parte communication was dated October 14, 1993, before Dr. Norman's scheduled deposition on October 18, 1993.

Mr. Elledge's defense counsel William Laswell testified that he never before saw the documents in question: "I don't think I've seen this before." (PC-R. at 575). James Ongley, another defense attorney on Mr. Elledge's case, was uncertain if he had previously seen those withheld documents (PC.-R. at 605). Post-conviction counsel for Mr. Elledge testified that she reviewed each and every page of Mr. Elledge's files and at

no time found the faxed documentation from Dr. Norman (PC-R. at 567-575).

The State kept these documents secret until it began its cross examination of Dr. Lewis in 2002. On cross examination, in an effort to discredit her credibility and testimony, the State Attorney asked Dr. Lewis:

- Q: You had indicated that you want an EEG with hyperventilation and photic stimulation?
- D: Correct.
- Q: Do you realize that [those tests] was done with Mr. Mr. Elledge on October 4, 1993?

 (PC-R. at 484).

Dr. Lewis said she knew there had been some abnormalities but she was unaware that Mr. Elledge ever had hyperventilation or photic stimulation EEGs. "But I have seen something that had these other things in it that would have made me want to follow up with, you know, with more specific tests." (PC-R. at 495).

The disclosure of those records only came to light during the cross examination of defense witness Dr. Lewis at the July, 2002 evidentiary hearing. Those records were not in the defense attorney files (PC-R. at 567-575), nor were they in the State Attorney files turned over to the defense in post-conviction proceedings. In fact, the State Attorney admitted

that those records, which were surreptitious obtained, were withheld from the defense and filed as "exempt" materials and intentionally kept from the defense. At no time was the defense privy to those documents or the communication the State Attorney had with defense expert Dr. Norman. It was only after the trial court re-opened the exempt materials in open court in 2002 it discovered that the faxed report from Dr. Norman was placed in exempt materials of the State Attorney and had been intentionally kept from the defense (PC-R. 636).

It is undisputed that Dr. Norman's faxed report was not disclosed to the defense before the July, 2002 evidentiary hearing.

In denying this claim, the trial court simply said that "the Defendant has failed to establish any <u>Brady</u> violation with regard to Dr. Norman's report." (PC-R. at). This was error.

B. The Law.

1. Brady v. Maryland.

To insure a constitutionally adequate adversarial testing and a fair trial occur, the prosecutor is required to disclose to the defense evidence "that is both favorable to the accused and 'material either to guilt or punishment.'" <u>United States</u>

v. Bagley, 473 U.S. 667, 674 (1985), guoting Brady v. Maryland, 373 U.S. 83, 87 (1963). In <u>Strickler v. Greene</u>, 527 U.S. 263, 281 (1999), the Supreme Court reiterated the "special role played by the American prosecutor" as one "whose interest . . . in a criminal prosecution is not that it shall win a case, but that justice shall be done, " guoting Berger v. <u>United States</u>, 295 U.S. 78, 88 (1935). <u>Hoffman v. State</u>, 800 So. 2d 174 (Fla. 2001); State v. Huggins, 788 So. 2d 238 (Fla. 2001); <u>Florida Bar v. Cox</u>, 794 So.2d 1278 (Fla. 2001). State's duty to disclose exculpatory evidence applies even when there has been no request by the defendant. Strickler at 280. The State also has a duty to learn of any favorable evidence known to individuals acting on the government's behalf. Id. at 281. "It is irrelevant whether the prosecutor or police is responsible for the nondisclosure; it is enough that the State itself fails to disclose." Garcia v. State, 622 So.2d 1325, 1330 (Fla. 1993). "The State is charged with constructive knowledge and possession of evidence withheld by other state agents, including law enforcement officers." Jones v. State, 709 So. 2d 512, 520 (Fla. 1998).

Most recently, the United States Supreme Court in <u>Banks</u>
v. <u>Dretke</u>, 124 S.Ct. 1256 (2004), held that when police or
prosecutors conceal significant exculpatory or impeaching

material in the State's possession, it is incumbent on the State to set the record straight. The court also said that a rule in which the "prosecutor may hide, defendant must seek" is untenable in a system constitutionally bound to accord defendants due process. "Prosecutors' dishonest conduct or unwarranted concealment should attract no judicial approbriation." Kyles v. Whitley, 514 U.S. 419, 440 (1995).

This Court has held that, "the State is under a continuing obligation to disclose any exculpatory evidence."

Johnson v. Butterworth, 713 So.2d 985, 987 (Fla. 1998); see also Roberts v. Butterworth, 668 So.2d 580 (Fla. 1996)(finding that Brady obligation continues in post-conviction). In

Ventura v. State, 673 So. 2d 479 (Fla. 1996), this Court said, "The State cannot fail to furnish relevant information and then argue that the claim need not be heard on its merits because of an asserted procedural default that was caused by the State's failure to act."

While undisclosed reports may be of debatable exculpatory value, the defendant should have the benefit of the information contained within them. <u>Boshears v. State</u>, 511 So. 2d 721 (Fla. 1st DCA 1987); <u>Perdomo v. State</u>, 565 So. 2d 1375 (Fla. 2nd DCA 1990).

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