IN THE SUPREME COURT OF FLORIDA

WILLIAM DUANE ELLEDGE,

Appellant,

v.

CASE NO. SC03-1201

STATE OF FLORIDA,

Appellee.

_____/

ON APPEAL FROM THE CIRCUIT COURT
OF THE SEVENTEENTH JUDICIAL CIRCUIT
IN AND FOR BROWARD COUNTY, STATE OF FLORIDA

ANSWER BRIEF OF THE APPELLEE

CHARLES J. CRIST, JR. ATTORNEY GENERAL

CAROLYN M. SNURKOWSKI Assistant Deputy Attorney General Florida Bar No. 158541

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL THE CAPITOL Tallahassee, Florida (850) 414-3300, Ext. 3566 (850) 487-0997 (Fax)

COUNSEL FOR APPELLEE

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

THE DEFENDANT: Your Honor, I have been so far as to stop a miscarriage from going on.

THE COURT: While that - - that while each of the counsel tables are fully covered, which would have allowed for the shackling of Mr. Elledge without the jury having an opportunity to observe, the court determined that that would not be the procedure to be used. Mr. Elledge was appreciative of that at the time, was aware that the court would provide security. As security was fashioned it was done in a manner to be as least observable, offensive, and in the most minimus in manners as is possible.

The court followed that procedure, had discussions with both armed deputies as well as the uniformed unarmed court bailiffs, who for that matter the jury wouldn't know were or were not armed. Theoretically they were jackets, but regardless. Clearly, the entire procedure that has been followed has not been complained of other than a roving uniformed officer who occasionally, and different officers at that time,

made routine courtroom checks, which were not complained of until just this very moment. The significance of the complaint as to the officer today who visited is minimized by the fact that they were other officers in the past who also routinely came in a couple of minutes, no longer, and left and that's exactly what happened today.

Motion for mistrial on those grounds is denied. (TR 2707-14).

This issue could have and should have been raised on direct appeal. He is procedurally barred from arguing on appeal. To characterize the matter as evincing excessive security which "permeated the entire capital trial proceedings" is baseless.

See Huff v. State, 762 So.2d 476 (Fla. 2000).

Elledge also argues that trial counsel rendered ineffective assistance of counsel for failing to question the "excessive security measures". The record demonstrates that trial counsel participated in determining the kind of security to take place during the resentencing proceedings. The measures undertaken were reasonable. Elledge cannot demonstrate that any prejudice occurred pertaining to the security measures, and as such, he cannot demonstrate cause and actual prejudice under Strickland v. Washington, 466 U.S. 668 (1984), based on conjecture that trial counsel should have done more.

ARGUMENT V

KEEPING A DEATH-SENTENCED DEFENDANT ON DEATH ROW FOR AN LONG PERIOD CONSTITUTES CRUEL AND UNUSUAL PUNISH.

Elledge argues that lengthy confinement on death row constitutes cruel and unusual punishment. This issue was raised on direct appeal and decided adversely to Elledge. See Elledge v. State, 706 So.2d 1340, 1347, n.10 (Fla. 1997); Porter v. State, 653 So.2d 374 (Fla. 1995); Knight v. State, 746 So.2d 423, 437 (Fla. 1998); Booker v. State, 773 So.2d 1079 (Fla. 2000), and State v. Moore, 591 NW 2d 86 (Neb. 1999).

Because this issue was raised on direct appeal it is not cognizable in postconviction litigation. See <u>Elledge v. State</u>, 706 So.2d 1340, 1347 (Fla. 1997).

ARGUMENT VI

LENGTHY CONFINEMENT VIOLATE INTERNATIONAL LAW

Elledge also argues that the long delay between sentencing and execution and the condition in which Elledge is housed, constitutes "cruel, inhumane, or degrading treatment or punishment" in violation of Article VII, of the International Covenant on Civil and Political Rights (ICCPR) (Appellant's Brief, p 75). This issue is procedurally barred because it was raised as part of Issue XII on direct appeal—the delays in the time Elledge has been on Florida's death row. Since this claim was raised on direct appeal, it is not cognizable on

postconviction and therefore it is procedurally barred from further review. Porter v. State, 653 So.2d 374 (Fla. 1995); Knight v. State, 746 So.2d 423, 437 (Fla. 1998); Booker v. State, 773 So.2d 1079 (Fla. 2000), and State v. Moore, 591 NW 2d 86 (Neb. 1999).

ARGUMENT VII

THE TRIAL COURT ERRONEOUSLY INSTRUCTED THE JURY ON THE STANDARD BY WHICH IT MUST JUDGE EXPERT TESTIMONY.

The trial court instructed the jury on expert witnesses pursuant to the standard jury instructions, without objection. Trial counsel, however, cannot be said to have rendered ineffective assistance of counsel merely for failing to object to the standard jury instructions previously approved by the Florida Supreme Court. Downs v. State, 740 So.2d 506, 517 (Fla. 1999); Thompson v. State, 759 So.2d 650 (Fla. 2000); Harvey v. State, 656 So.2d 1253, 1258 (Fla. 1995).

At the close of all the instructions, defense counsel did not object as to the instructions given (TR 2875). ⁷⁶

(TR 2869).

Expert witnesses as I previously told you are like other witnesses with one exception, the law permits an expert witness to give his or her opinion.

However, an expert's opinion is only reliable when given on a subject about which you believe that person to be an expert.

Like other witnesses, members of the jury, you may believe or disbelieve all or any part of an expert's testimony.

On direct appeal however, counsel raised other issues regarding the correctness of the jury instruction as to reasonable doubt; and submitted special jury instructions with regard to non-statutory mitigation and an explanation as to the nature and function of mitigating circumstances. Counsel also

This issue could have been raised on direct appeal had there been a basis to do so. As such, it is procedurally barred. See Brown v. State, 755 So.2d 616 (Fla. 2000) (challenge to jury instruction on expert procedurally barred); LeCroy v. State, 727 So.2d 236, 238, 241, n.11 (Fla. 1998) (jury instruction on expert testimony procedurally barred); Davis v. State, 520 So.2d 572, 574 (Fla. 1988) (finding that Florida's standard jury instruction on expert testimony sufficiently explained to the jury who was to weigh expert testimony).

Elledge further argues that the State "emphasized this point in challenging the qualifications of the defense expert's", specifically, in the jury instruction as to expert witnesses. This issue was summarily denied because it is refuted by the record. The State may inquire into the basis, i.e., facts and circumstances relied upon by the experts in reaching an opinion. "We have held 'that it is proper for a party to fully inquire into the history utilized by the expert to determine whether the expert's opinion has a proper basis.'" Johnson v. State, 608

challenge as unconstitutional the jury instruction on heinous, atrocious and cruel and asserted that the instruction on the avoid arrest aggravator should not have been given. Under https://doi.org/10.1036/jhtml.new.note and the above-noted cases, the claim is procedurally barred and counsel cannot be found to have been ineffective for failing to raise this particular jury instruction.

So.2d 4, 10-11 (Fla. 1992) (quoting <u>Parker v. State</u>, 476 So.2d 134,139 (Fla. 1985). The prosecutor's remarks were appropriate based on the testimony before the jury. <u>See Walls v. State</u>, 641 So.2d 389, 391 (Fla. 1994) (explaining that jury's free to reject opinion testimony to the extent that it is not supported by the facts at hand); <u>Byrd v. State</u>, 297 So.2d 22, 24 (Fla. 1974) (affirming rule that jury is entitled to disbelieve an expert in favor of non-expert testimony).

ARGUMENT VIII

INSANE TO BE EXECUTED

Citing Ford v. Wainwright, 477 U.S. 399 (1986), and Stewart v. Martinez-Villareal, 532 U.S. 637 (1998), Elledge has raised this claim to exhaust "state remedies and to preserve a claim for review in future proceedings and in federal court." (Appellant Brief, p 79-80). By raising the issue without specific facts, the trial court as well as this Court can only conclude that Elledge has failed to state a cause of action upon which relief may be granted and therefor he barred from asserting that he is insane to be executed. See: Provenzano v. State, 760 So.2d 137 (Fla. 2000).

ARGUMENT IX

DENIAL OF EFFECTIVE COUNSEL DUE TO RULES PROHIBITING LAWYERS FROM INTERVIEWING JURORS TO DETERMINE IF CONSTITUTIONAL ERROR WAS PRESENT.

The Florida Rule of Professional Conduct 4-3.5(d)(4), which prohibits juror interviews, is not unconstitutional because "it prohibits him from fully exploring possible misconduct and bias of the jury thus preventing him from fully showing the unfairness of his trial." (Appellant's Brief, page 83).

First, Elledge pled guilty and as a result, a jury was empaneled for the penalty phase only. Second, at no time during the latest penalty phase did defense counsel object or preserve this issue for further review. As such, it is procedurally barred. See Huff v. State, 762 So.2d 476 (Fla. 2000); Brown v. State, 755 So.2d 616 (Fla. 2000); Gaskin v. State, 737 So.2d 509, 513, n.6 (Fla. 1999) (finding procedurally barred a challenge to the rule which prohibits juror interviews to determine whether misconduct has occurred); Thompson v. State, supra, 25 Fla.L.Weekly at S349, n.12. And third, Elledge made no attempt to raise this issue on direct appeal. Based on the fact scenario set forth herein, it trial counsel could have

He argues alternatively that social scientists ought to be appointed in his case, should the court uphold validity of Rule 4-3.5(d)(4), against an individual attorney. Elledge should not be permitted to try to breathe life into an issue that is barred, by suggesting the court appoint social scientists, thus, hoping a colorable claim may develop. Indeed, this claim is legally insufficient on its face. Moreover, the State questions whether Elledge has standing to challenge the validity of this Rule of Professional Conduct as promulgated by the Florida Supreme Court to regulate members of the Florida Bar.

raised these claims on direct appeal had there been a basis to do so. See: Power v. State, 2004 Fla. LEXIS 662, 29 Fla. L. Weekly S207 (Fla. May 6, 2004)(Other cases similar constitutional challenges rejected.); Sweet v. Moore, 822 So.2d 1269 (Fla. 2002).

In the instant case, even assuming that the issue is not procedurally barred, Elledge would be required to make a prima facie showing of misconduct which he cannot do. Asserting that appointing social scientists to collect evidence and study possible allegations where the jurors may be guilty of misconduct is simply inadequate. LeCroy v. State, 727 So.2d 236 (Fla. 1999).

Elledge, however, cannot overcome the procedural bar and under this issue has failed to assert that counsel rendered ineffective assistance of counsel at resentencing for failing to secure social scientists to assist in developing this claim.

ARGUMENT X

INNOCENT OF THE DEATH PENALTY

Elledge urges the "innocence of the death penalty is shown by demonstrating insufficient aggravating circumstances so as to render the individual ineligible for death..." (Appellant's Brief p 84). He supports this contention by arguing that the

mitigation outweighed the aggravation; ⁷⁸ the instructions as to aggravation were erroneous, et al.; ⁷⁹ there was error in the trial court's sentencing order; ⁸⁰ and the sentence is not proportionate. ⁸¹ Each contention is either flawed, unsupported by the record or has been decided adversely to him.

In <u>Sochor v. State</u>, 2004 Fla. LEXIS 985, 29 Fla. L. Weekly S363 (Fla. July 8, 2004) the Court held:

Sochor claims that he is entitled to relief for constitutional errors, even though otherwise procedurally barred, because he is "innocent of the death penalty." We reject the claim because we found on direct appeal that the evidence supported the existence of three aggravating circumstances. Sochor, 619 So.2d at 292; see also Allen v. State, 854 So.2d

The trial court found four statutory aggravating factors which were unassailed and proven beyond a reasonable doubt: 1) previously convicted of another capital murder; 2) murder committed during or attempt to commit or escape after committing a rape; 3) murder committed to avoid or escape arrest; and, 4) the murder was HAC. To be innocent of the death penalty, there must be "no aggravating factors" to weigh again the mitigation.

⁷⁹ Jury instruction raised on direct appeal were decided against Elledge and issues raised belatedly postconviction are procedural barred.

⁸⁰ Errors regarding the accuracy of the trial court's assessment of the evidence was reviewed on direct appeal and found to be error but harmless.

The Court affirmed Elledge's fourth death sentence on direct appeal concluding the aggravating factors outweighed the mitigating factors, and that the sentence of death was affirmed. The Florida Supreme Court as part of its appellate function performs a proportionality review. Brown v. Wainwright, 392 So.2d 1327 (Fla. 1981); Proffitt v. Florida, 428 U.S. 242 (1976); State v. Dixon, 283 So.2d 1 (Fla. 1973).

1255, 1258 n.5 (Fla. 2003) (holding that innocence of death penalty claim lacks merit because defendant did not allege that all the aggravating circumstances supporting his death sentence were invalid, and because this Court had already conducted a proportionality review on direct appeal).

Likewise, in the instant case, this Court has upheld the aggravating factors in Elledge's case, finding that the trial court correctly weighed the aggravating against the mitigating circumstances and concluded that "the aggravating circumstances clearly and convincingly outweigh the mitigating circumstances so that no reasonable person could differ." Elledge, 706 So.2d at 1346. See also: Windom v. State, 2004 Fla. LEXIS 664, 29 Fla. L. Weekly S191 (Fla. May 6, 2004).

ARGUMENT XI

CAPITAL SENTENCING STATUTE UNCONSTITUTIONAL ON ITS FACE AND AS APPLIED BECAUSE IT FAILS TO PREVENT THE ARBITRARY AND CAPRICIOUS IMPOSITION OF THE DEATH PENALTY.

"In view of the arbitrary and capricious application of the death penalty under the current statute, the constitutionality of Florida's death penalty statute is in doubt." (Appellant Brief, p 89). On its face and as applied, Elledge argues that he is entitled to relief. He raised on direct appeal challenges to the constitutionality of Florida's death penalty statute, specifically he asserted that in Claim XXVII, that Florida's

death penalty statute was unconstitutional. 82 Elledge, 706 So.2d at 1347. Elledge could have also raised the claims that were in Issue XIV, below, and raised here. 83 Each of these claims could have and should have been raised on direct appeal and therefore the claims are procedurally barred and without merit. See Peede v. State, 748 So.2d 253, 256, n.6 (Fla. 1999); Hall v. State, 742 So.2d 225, 226 (Fla. 1999); Buenoano v. State, 559 So.2d 1116, 1118 (Fla. 1990); LeCroy v. State, 727 So.2d 238, 241 (Fla. 1998); Remeta v. State, 622 So.2d 452, 455-56 (Fla. 1993); Huff v. State, supra, 25 Fla.L.Weekly at S413, n.2, issue XVI. See also Engle v. State, 576 So.2d 698, 700 (Fla. 1992) (ruling

Therein, he complained about the jury and the lack of unanimous verdicts; the trial judge's can override the jury's recommendation and there is no basis for the jury's recommendation given; the fact that the Florida Supreme Court conducted an improper appellate review; and that in his case the aggravating circumstances were not proven and there was no narrowing to support a valid sentencing scheme.

statute death penalty scheme in Florida constitutes an arbitrary imposition of the death penalty; that there is not sufficient definition of sufficient aggravating circumstances; that the capital sentencing scheme does not have independent reweighing of aggravation and mitigation; that the juries receive unconstitutionally vague instructions as to aggravating circumstances; that there is presumption to death in a single aggravating circumstance of felony murder; that the death penalty is arbitrarily and capriciously applied; that the death penalty is "fraught with arbitrariness, discrimination, caprice and mistake" and that because of the arbitrary and capricious application, constitutionality of Florida's death penalty statute is in doubt.

that motion is legally insufficient absent factual support for allegation conclusively shows that relief is not warranted).

ARGUMENT XII

FLORIDA'S DEATH PENALTY PERMITS CRUEL AND UNUSUAL PUNISHMENT

Execution by electrocution and/or lethal injection does not constitute cruel and unusual punishment on its face and as applied. The allegations presented in this claim are argued to "preserve[s] arguments as to the constitutionality of the death penalty."

The issue was decided adversely to him when he raised it on direct appeal (Issue 27), see Elledge, 706 So.2d. at 1342, moreover, since Elledge never exercised his rights under Fla. Stat. 922.105(2), he has waived execution by electrocution. The constitutionality of execution by lethal injection has been decided against Elledge. Sochor v. State, 2004 Fla. LEXIS 985, 29 Fla. L. Weekly S363 (Fla. July 8, 2004); Power v. State, 2004 Fla. LEXIS 662, 29 Fla. L. Weekly S 207 (Fla May 6, 2004); Davis v. State, 875 So.2d 359 (Fla. 2003).

ARGUMENT XIII

CUMULATIVE ERROR ANALYSIS NOT CONDUCTED.

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